  NPR Library

FREE RESEARCH RESOURCES ON THE WEB

News & Resources for Journalists

First Headlines

Breaking news headlines from local, regional, national & international online news sources.

http://www.1stheadlines.com 

Google News

Aggregated headlines and a search engine of many of the world's news sources.

http://news.google.com 

American Journalism Review 

Links offering reportorial aids to journalists. Continuing assessment of news and industry issues.
http://www.ajr.org/
Newslink
Comprehensive news resource with nearly 20000 free media links.

http://newslink.org/ 

Columbia Journalism Review 

Journalists’ Tools

http://www.cjr.org/tools/ 

Journalism Net

Resource for world-wide news, political, and government information as well as Internet searching tools.

http://www.journalismnet.com/ 

American Press Institute

Journalists’ Toolbox

http://www.americanpressinstitute.org/pages/toolbox/ 

National Press Club Reporter Resources

http://npc.press.org/library06/resources.cfm 

Investigative Reporters & Editors Resources

http://www.ire.org/resourcecenter/ 

National Institute for Computer-Assisted Reporting

http://www.nicar.org 

Notable Federal Government Resources

USA Gov

US government’s official web portal.

http://www.usa.gov/
Census

Information on US people and economy.

http://www.census.gov/
American FactFinder: http://factfinder.census.gov/home/saff/main.html?_lang=en
See also Census subjects list: http://www.census.gov/main/www/subjects.html
CIA World Fact Book

In-depth country profiles.

http://www.odci.gov/cia/publications/factbook/index.html 

State Department Background Notes

Facts about the land, people, history, government, political conditions, economy, and foreign relations of independent states, some dependencies, and areas of special sovereignty.

http://www.state.gov/r/pa/ei/bgn/
VOA Pronunciation Guide 

How to pronounce foreign names, and some places.

http://names.voa.gov/
Securities Exchange Commission (EDGAR)

Copies of forms 10-K and other filings with the US Securities and Exchange Commission.  Database of filings required by public companies – lots of disclosure details.

www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml
FRED (Federal Reserve Economic Data)

This site provides access to historical tables for a number of economic data such as GNP, consumer index, and the Federal Reserve System's Beige Book.

http://research.stlouisfed.org/fred2/
Bureau of Labor Statistics 

The Bureau of Labor Statistics is the principal fact-finding agency for the Federal Government in the broad field of labor economics and statistics.

http://www.bls.gov/
Bureau of Economic Analysis 

The Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA) promotes a better understanding of the U.S. economy by providing the most timely, relevant, and accurate economic accounts data in an objective and cost-effective manner.

http://bea.gov/
Bureau of Justice Statistics

Statistics about crime and victims, drugs and crime, criminal offenders, the justice system in the United States, law enforcement, prosecution, etc.

http://www.ojp.usdoj.gov/bjs/
Bureau of Transportation Statistics

Database of statistics on road, water, rail, and air transportation. 

http://www.transtats.bts.gov/
NTSB Accident Database

The NTSB aviation accident database contains information from 1962 and later about civil aviation accidents and selected incidents within the United States, its territories and possessions, and in international waters.

http://www.ntsb.gov/ntsb/query.asp
Federal Election Commission

US independent regulatory agency created to administer and enforce the statute that governs the financing of federal elections. Who gave to whom; financial disclosure reports

http://www.fec.gov/disclosure.shtml
Notable State & Local Government Resources

State Secretaries of State

Search business registration databases for names of company officers and registered agents. Great resource for incorporated businesses; find business associates and corporation numbers; look up business status & type. 

http://www.nass.org/sos/sosflags.html
Stateline

State information for journalists.

http://www.stateline.org 

National Conference of State Legislatures

Good source for information on state legislation.

http://ncsl.org 

Media Resources: http://ncsl.org/programs/press/statehouse_resources.htm
National Association of Counties

Includes a searchable database of information collected from US counties, and other resources.

http://www.naco.org/
National League of Cities

Non-profit association of cities and state municipals leagues. Provides municipal association legislative priorities, conference information, program background and related policy statements.

http://www.nlc.org/home/ 

Nation’s Cities Weekly: www.nlc.org/Newsroom/Nation_s_Cities_Weekly/
National City Network

City-level issues. 

http://www.nationalcitynetwork.org/ 

Law & Legislation

Thomas

Source for federal legislative information.

http://thomas.loc.gov/
PACER (requires registration; nominal fees)

Electronic access to U.S. District, Bankruptcy, and Appellate court records.

http://pacer.psc.uscourts.gov/
Legal Information Institute

Link to federal and state statutes, and codes; links to some state and federal judicial opinions.

http://www.law.cornell.edu/
LLRX Court Rules, Forms & Dockets

One stop collection of links to federal, state, and local court rules; extensive coverage for all states includes both state rules and state local rules.

http://www.llrx.com/courtrules/
State Bar Registries

Find attorney ID numbers, check for disciplinary action, and find contact information. http://www.bestcase.com/statebar.htm
Lawyer Directories

Find contact information for attorneys

http://www.martindale.com/xp/Martindale/home.xml
http://lawyers.findlaw.com/lawyer/lawyer_dir/search/jsp/name_search.jsp
Politics & National Elections

Audio & transcripts of President’s speeches & statements

http://www.whitehouse.gov/news/
Washington Post US Congress Vote Tracker

http://projects.washingtonpost.com/congress/racker
Congressional Biographies

http://bioguide.congress.gov/biosearch/biosearch.asp
Open Secrets (Campaign Finance)

Find out who donated to whom. National elections only – no state races.

http://opensecrets.org/
Polling Report

Collection of polls from various sources about the potential candidates for the US presidential election.

http://www.pollingreport.com/2008.htm
Experts

Profnet

Connects reporters easily and quickly with expert sources. Requires registration.

https://profnet.prnewswire.com/ 

Diversity Toolbox 

Access to diverse experts from Society of Professional Journalists

http://www.spj.org/dtb.asp
Think Tank & University Experts

Links to experts databases.

http://www.ibiblio.org/slanews/internet/experts.htm
AMA DoctorFinder

Provides basic professional information on licensed physicians in the United States.

http://webapps.ama-assn.org/doctorfinder/home.html
War Casualties

DOD Personnel & Military Casualty Statistics

Personnel data

http://siadapp.dior.whs.mil/personnel/MMIDHOME.HTM
In-depth & historical data on casualties

http://siadapp.dior.whs.mil/personnel/CASUALTY/castop.htm
Daily casualty report

http://www.defenselink.mil/news/casualty.pdf
CNN casualties database

Detailed list of military personnel whose deaths have been reported by their country's governments.

http://www.cnn.com/SPECIALS/2003/iraq/forces/casualties/index.html
Iraq Body Count

Iraqi civilian casualties

http://iraqbodycount.net/ 

Iraq Coalition Casualties

Documents coalition casualties for Operation Iraqi Freedom and Operation Enduring Freedom. The best source for breakdowns by service, state, date, etc.

http://icasualties.org/oif/
Disasters

National Weather Service

http://www.nws.noaa.gov/ 

Earthquake Information

http://earthquake.usgs.gov/regional/neic/ 

National Hurricane Center

Provides detailed location and forecasting of tropical storms and hurricanes.

http://www.nhc.noaa.gov/
Plane Crash Info

Aviation accident database with brief analysis and links to official determinations. Voice recordings, aircraft specifications, statistics, sorts by carrier, etc.

http://www.planecrashinfo.com/
Calculators & Calendars

Calendars & Time Zones

Generate calendars from past years, determine time in other cities, generate countdowns and future calendars. 

http://www.timeanddate.com/
Distance Calculator

Calculate distances between geographic points.

http://www.indo.com/distance/
Convert Measurements, Currency, and More

http://www.convertit.com/Go/ConvertIt/
Dollar in History

Have you ever wondered what the value of a dollar was in 1895? Or what the GDP was in 1929? This site is a good resource. 

http://eh.net/hmit/
The Inflation Calculator

Compare the value of any dollar amount during any two years between 1800 and 1998. 

http://www.westegg.com/inflation/
Maps & Directions

Maporama

National & International maps & directions

http://world.maporama.com/idl/maporama/
Google Maps

Provides directions, interactive maps, and satellite/aerial imagery of the United States. Can also search by keyword such as type of business.

http://maps.google.com/
Telephone Directories

International Calling Codes 

http://www.business.att.com/bt/dial_guide.jsp
International Phone Directories

http://www.infobel.com/teldir/
US Area Codes (and zip codes)

http://us.cqww.net/states.php
US phone directories

Switchboard -- search person’s name across all States

http://www.switchboard.com/
AnyWho --requires that you specify the State

http://www.anywho.com/
Reverse Directories 

Search by address or phone number

http://www.reversephonedirectory.com/
http://www.anywho.com/rl.html
Miscellaneous

Arts Journal

Receive emails or RSS feeds on Arts topics.

http://www.artsjournal.com 

Science Daily

Receive emails or RSS feeds on Science topics.

http://www.sciencedaily.com/ 

All Music Guide

Bios, discographies, etc on musicians.

http://www.allmusic.com/
Box Office Mojo

Ticket sales, indices, theater counts, trailers.

http://www.boxofficemojo.com/
Dead People Server

Where to go when you’re wondering if a celebrity is dead or alive.

dpsinfo.com/dps/

Utilities
Bug Me Not

Get passwords for sites that require registration.

http://www.bugmenot.com
Tiny URL

Shrink giant Web addresses to manageable size.

http://tinyurl.com
Search Engines

News about search engines (like Google) and search tutorials

http://searchenginewatch.com
http://searchenginez.com
http://searchengineshowdown.com
http://www.internettutorials.net
Article databases

Free Journal Articles & Abstracts

www.findarticles.com
(n.b., Most larger public libraries provide free remote access to article databases (examples are Lexis/Nexis, EBSCO, InfoTrac, Gale Virtual Reference) with your library card)

. . .

Audio Resources

Supreme Court Audio

Audio of the selected Supreme Court Cases

http://www.oyez.org/
Audio of the Presidents

Current president – audio and transcripts of speeches and statements

http://www.whitehouse.gov/news/
Past presidents at the American Presidency Project: http://www.presidency.ucsb.edu/index.php
Contacting Presidential Libraries for Sound

http://www.archives.gov/presidential-libraries/contact/libraries.html
See also the White House Tapes project for sound and transcripts (1940-1973)

http://www.millercenter.virginia.edu/academic/presidentialrecordings/
Presidential ads (1952-2004)

http://livingroomcandidate.movingimage.us/index.php
Locating Audio on the Web

Try using these web resources to locate sound:

Google video search

http://video.google.com/
AllTheWeb audio or video search

http://www.alltheweb.com/
AltaVista audio search

http://www.altavista.com/audio/default
YouTube

http://youtube.com/
Blinkx 

Blinkx.com
Other Important Audio Collections (fee-based)
Vanderbilt TV archive (registration required)

Collection of network news broadcasts -- ABC, CBS, NBC, CNN, PBS -- from 1968 to the present.

http://tvnews.vanderbilt.edu/
Vincent Voice Library, Michigan State University (public domain content is free)

The G. Robert Vincent Voice Library is a collection of over 40,000 hours of spoken word recordings, dating back to 1888. The collection includes the voices of over 100,000 persons from all walks of life.

http://vvl.lib.msu.edu/index.cfm
. . .

Compiled by the NPR Reference Library

referencelibrary@npr.org
AD, 2/2007

8

